
 
NOTICE 

 
OF 

 
MEETING 

 
WINDSOR AND ASCOT DEVELOPMENT 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

will meet on 
 

WEDNESDAY, 5TH OCTOBER, 2022 
 

At 7.00 pm 
 

In the 
 

GREY ROOM - YORK HOUSE,  AND ON RBWM YOUTUBE  
 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR AND ASCOT DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

COMMITTEE 
 
COUNCILLORS DAVID CANNON (CHAIRMAN), SAYONARA LUXTON (VICE-
CHAIRMAN), SHAMSUL SHELIM, GARY MUIR, DAVID HILTON, AMY TISI, 
NEIL KNOWLES, WISDOM DA COSTA AND JON DAVEY  

 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 
 
COUNCILLORS KAREN DAVIES, JOHN BOWDEN, JULIAN SHARPE, LYNNE JONES, 
HELEN PRICE, CAROLE DA COSTA, JOHN STORY, SAMANTHA RAYNER AND 
DAVID COPPINGER 

 
Karen Shepherd – Head of Governance - Issued: 27 September 2022 

 
Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Oran Norris-Browne Oran.Norris-
Browne@RBWM.gov.uk 

 
 

Recording of Meetings – In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the Part I (public) section of the virtual 
meeting will be streamed live and recorded via Zoom. By participating in the meeting by audio and/or video, you are 
giving consent to being recorded and acknowledge that the recording will be in the public domain. If you have any 

questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting. 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/WindsorMaidenhead/videos
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO 
  

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
  

- 
 

 
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
To receive any declarations of interest. 
  

3 - 6 
 

 
3.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2022 as a true 
and accurate record. 
  

7 - 10 
 

 
4.   22/00721/OUT - OLD BOUNDARY HOUSE AND NEW BOUNDARY 

HOUSE LONDON ROAD SUNNINGDALE ASCOT 
 
PROPOSAL: Outline application for access, layout and scale only to be 
considered at this stage with all other matters to be reserved for the 
construction of 28 apartments following demolition of the existing buildings. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Refuse 
 
APPLICANT: Mr Inchbald 
 
MEMBER CALL-IN: N/A 
 
EXPIRY DATE: 16 June 2022 
  

11 - 38 
 

 
5.   22/01945/FULL - 106 WOLF LANE WINDSOR SL4 4YZ 

 
PROPOSAL: x1 rear outbuilding – retrospective. 
  
RECOMMENDATION: Permit 
 
APPLICANT: Mr Prakash 
 
MEMBER CALL-IN: N/A 
 
EXPIRY DATE: 16 September 2022 
  

39 - 46 
 

 
6.   PLANNING APPEALS RECEIVED AND PLANNING DECISION 

REPORT 
 
To note the contents of the report. 
  

47 - 48 
 

 
 



Revised September 2021 

 

 
 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been 
relied on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation. 
The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions, 
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local 
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters 
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background 
Paper, although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to 
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded as 
“Comments Awaited”. 
 
The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning 
Acts and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire 
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning 
Guidance, as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are 
common to the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these 
documents will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”. 
 
 
STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 
The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000, 
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to 
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8 
(respect for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property) 
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is further 
provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the vast majority of 
cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing exercise between private 
rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s decision making will continue to 
take into account this balance. 
 
The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual 
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances 
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3

Agenda Item 2



Revised September 2021 

 

 
 
 
 

MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS  
 

Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration 
of interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI) or Other Registerable Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest 
in their Register of Interests they are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter 
being discussed.   
 
Any Member with concerns about the nature of their interest should consult the Monitoring Officer in 
advance of the meeting.  
 
Non-participation in case of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your DPIs (summary below, further 
details set out in Table 1 of the Members’ Code of Conduct) you must disclose the interest, not 
participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you 
have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ (as agreed in advance by the Monitoring 
Officer), you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest. 
Dispensation may be granted by the Monitoring Officer in limited circumstances, to enable you to 
participate and vote on a matter in which you have a DPI. 

Where you have a DPI on a matter to be considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet 
Member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest 
and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to 
deal with it. 
 
DPIs (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) made to the 
councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out his/her 
duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election expenses 

• Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has 
not been fully discharged. 

• Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the council. 

• Any licence to occupy land in the area of the council for a month or longer. 

• Any tenancy where the landlord is the council, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant person 
has a beneficial interest in the securities of. 

• Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a place of business or land in the area of the council, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class 
belonging to the relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other Registerable Interests 
(summary below and as set out in Table 2 of the Members Code of Conduct), you must disclose the 
interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak 
at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive 

4



Revised September 2021 

 

interest’ (as agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer), you do not have to disclose the nature of 
the interest. 

Other Registerable Interests (relating to the Member or their partner): 

 

You have an interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to affect: 

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your authority 

b) any body 

(i) exercising functions of a public nature 

(ii)  directed to charitable purposes or 

 

one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political 

party or trade union) 

 

Disclosure of Non- Registerable Interests 
 
Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being (and 
is not a DPI) or a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the 
interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak 
at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ 
(agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer) you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or 
c. a body included in those you need to disclose under DPIs as set out in Table 1 of the 

Members’ code of Conduct 

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after 
disclosing your interest the following test should be applied. 

Where a matter affects your financial interest or well-being: 

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would 
affect your view of the wider public interest 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive 
interest’ (agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer, you do not have to disclose the nature of the 
interest. 
 
 
Other declarations 
 
Members may wish to declare at the beginning of the meeting any other information they feel should 
be in the public domain in relation to an item on the agenda; such Member statements will be included 
in the minutes for transparency. 
 

 
 

5



This page is intentionally left blank



WINDSOR AND ASCOT DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY, 7 SEPTEMBER 2022 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Sayonara Luxton (Vice-Chair, in the Chair), Shamsul Shelim, 
Gary Muir, David Hilton, Julian Sharpe, Amy Tisi, Wisdom Da Costa and Jon Davey 
 
Also in attendance virtually:  Councillors John Baldwin, Carole Da Costa and Gurch 
Singh 
 
Officers: Becky Oates, Jo Richards, Jeffrey Ng and Claire Pugh 
 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Cannon, with Councillor Sharpe attending as a 
substitute. Apologies were also received from Councillor Knowles. 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Shelim declared that his daughter attended Windsor Girls School but came to the 
meeting with an open mind. Councillor Shelim also declared that he was a member of the 
Windsor Partnership Board which was chaired by the applicant for 22/00897/OUT but came to 
the meeting with an open mind. 
 
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
AGREED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held 3 August 2022, 
be a true and accurate record.  
  
 
22/00217/FULL - LAND AT 57 TO 61 THE GREEN WRAYSBURY AND 1 TO 3 
STATION ROAD WRAYSBURY STAINES  
 
Councillor Hilton proposed a motion to refuse planning permission for the reasons listed in 
section 15 of the report, which was in line with officer recommendation. This motion was 
seconded by Councillor Sharpe. 
  
A named vote was taken. 

  
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the application be refused. 
  

22/00217/FULL - LAND AT 57 TO 61 THE GREEN WRAYSBURY AND 1 TO 3 STATION 
ROAD WRAYSBURY STAINES (Motion) 
Councillor Sayonara Luxton For 
Councillor Shamsul Shelim For 
Councillor Gary Muir For 
Councillor David Hilton For 
Councillor Julian Sharpe For 
Councillor Amy Tisi For 
Councillor Wisdom Da Costa For 
Councillor Jon Davey For 
Carried 

7

Agenda Item 3



The committee were addressed by Ivan Jones, objector, and a statement provided by 
Wraysbury Parish Council was read to the committee.  
 
22/00514/FULL - PUBLIC OPEN SPACE JUNCTION OF IMPERIAL ROAD AND 
LONGBOURN AND WINDSOR GIRLS SCHOOL IMPERIAL ROAD WINDSOR  
 
A motion was proposed by Councillor Shelim to permit the application subject to the conditions 
listed in section 9 of the report, and subject to the preparation and completion of a Statement 
of Intent regarding the carbon offset contributions and the introduction of a Controlled Parking 
Zone, which was in line with officer recommendation. This motion was seconded by Councillor 
Sharpe. 
  
A named vote was taken. 

  
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the application be permitted. 
  
  
 
22/00897/OUT - LAND FRONTING NORTH BANK OF THAMES AND ACCESSED 
BETWEEN 66 AND 68 WRAYSBURY ROAD STAINES  
 
A motion was proposed by Councillor Hilton to refuse the application as a result of the reasons 
listed in section 14 of the report, as updated in line with Section 3 of the committee update, 
which was in line with officer recommendation. This motion was seconded by Councillor 
Sharpe. 
  
A named vote was taken. 

  
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the application be refused. 
  
The committee were addressed by Keith French, applicant. 
 
PLANNING APPEALS RECEIVED AND PLANNING DECISION REPORT  

22/00514/FULL - PUBLIC OPEN SPACE JUNCTION OF IMPERIAL ROAD AND 
LONGBOURN AND WINDSOR GIRLS SCHOOL IMPERIAL ROAD WINDSOR (Motion) 
Councillor Sayonara Luxton For 
Councillor Shamsul Shelim For 
Councillor Gary Muir For 
Councillor David Hilton For 
Councillor Julian Sharpe For 
Councillor Amy Tisi For 
Councillor Wisdom Da Costa For 
Councillor Jon Davey For 
Carried 

22/00897/OUT - LAND FRONTING NORTH BANK OF THAMES AND ACCESSED 
BETWEEN 66 AND 68 WRAYSBURY ROAD STAINES (Motion) 
Councillor Sayonara Luxton For 
Councillor Shamsul Shelim For 
Councillor Gary Muir For 
Councillor David Hilton For 
Councillor Julian Sharpe For 
Councillor Amy Tisi For 
Councillor Wisdom Da Costa For 
Councillor Jon Davey For 
Carried 

8



 
Councillor Wisdom Da Costa asked if the planning appeal received was highly speculative. 
  
Jo Richards stated that she believed the borough had a very strong case. 
 
 
The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 8.25 pm 
 

CHAIRMAN………………………………. 
 

DATE……………………………….......... 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD 
PLANNING COMMITTEE

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL 

5 October 2022 
Item:  1 

Application 
No.:

22/00721/OUT 

Location: Old Boundary House And New Boundary House London Road 
Sunningdale Ascot  

Proposal: Outline application for access, layout and scale only to be considered at 
this stage with all other matters to be reserved for the construction of 28 
apartments following demolition of the existing buildings.

Applicant: Mr Inchbald 
Agent: Miss Helen Lowe
Parish/Ward: Sunningdale Parish/Sunningdale And Cheapside 

If you have a question about this report, please contact:  Katherine Hale on  or at 
katherine.hale@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY 

1.1 The application is for outline consent for the demolition of the two existing office 
buildings and for the erection of 28 apartments with associated access and parking. 
Matters to be considered are access, layout and scale. Appearance and landscaping 
would be considered at the Reserved Matters stage. 

1.2 The proposal is considered to be unacceptable for a number of reasons including the 
principle of losing the existing office space without any marketing, a development that 
would be of a cramped appearance with all the built form pushed to the edges of the 
site with negligible space available for landscaping; due to the cramped form of 
development there would be minimal communal outdoor space for future occupants 
and minimal space for additional soft landscaping. 

1.3 In addition to the above, the applicant has failed to provide any meaningful evidence 
that there is the likelihood of the necessary SANG Provision being secured with 
Bracknell Forest Borough Council to mitigate the harm arising to the Thames Basin 
Heaths SPA. 

1.4 Whilst technical matters could be secured by way of appropriate conditions and there 
is weight to be given to the provision of both market and affordable houses, the loss 
of the existing office space would be contrary to the Government’s holistic objectives 
for sustainable development and the extent and siting of the built form would result in 
a poorly designed and cramped for of development. It is therefore recommended that 
planning permission be refused for the reasons set out below. 

It is recommended the Committee refuses planning permission for the following 
summarised reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 15 of this report): 

1. The application involves the loss of two office buildings that are currently used by local 
businesses. The buildings are evidently attractive to local businesses and their loss, without 
any marketing information or any other justification is unacceptable and would have a 
significant adverse impact on the local, and potentially wider economy. The proposal is 

11

Agenda Item 4



therefore contrary to the objectives of Policy ED3 of the Local Plan, Policies NP/E1 and 
NP/E2 of the Ascot, Sunninghill & Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan, paragraph 81 of the 
NPPF. 

2. The proposed development, by virtue of its U-shaped layout that results in the built form 
being sited extremely close to or largely on the boundaries of the site, coupled with the loss 
of mature boundary trees and limited space to implement a meaningful replacement 
landscaping scheme, would result in a poorly designed and cramped form of development 
that would have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the site and 
surrounding area. The proposed scheme is therefore contrary to Policies QP3 and NR3 of 
the Local Plan, Policies NP/DG2, NP/DG3 and NP/EN2 of the Ascot, Sunninghill & 
Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan, paragraphs 126, 130 and 132 of the NPPF. 

3. The proposed development, by virtue of its cramped poorly designed layout would fail to 
provide sufficient private and communal outdoor amenity space that would impact upon the 
amenities of future occupants contrary to the objectives of Policy NP/DG3 of the Ascot, 
Sunninghill & Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan, paragraph 130(f) of the NPPF and 
Principals 8.5 and 8.6 of the Borough Wide Design Guide. 

4. The proposal is likely to have a significant effect in combination with other plans and projects 
in the locality on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area [SPA] as designated 
under The Conservation (Natural Habitats, etc) Regulations, and which is also designated 
as a Site of Special Scientific Interest [SSSI]. This would arise through increased visitor and 
recreational pressure on Chobham Common, as a constituent part of the SPA, causing 
disturbance to three species of protected, ground-nesting birds that are present at the site. 
In the absence of an assessment to show no likely significant effect, including sufficient 
mitigation measures to overcome any such impact on the SPA, and in the absence of 
financial provision towards the Strategic Access Management and Monitoring (SAMM) 
project and the provision of Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) noted in the 
Council's Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area SPD or satisfactory alternative 
provision, the likely adverse impact on the integrity of this European nature conservation site 
has not been overcome. The proposal is thus in conflict with the guidance and advice in the 
National Planning Policy Framework and the RBWM Thames Basin Heaths Special 
Protection Area SPD and fails to comply with policy NR4 of the Borough Local Plan.

2. REASON FOR COMMITTEE DETERMINATION

 The Council’s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to determine 
the application as it is for major development; such decisions can only be made by the 
Committee as the application is for major development.

3. THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS 

3.1 The site measures approximately 0.31ha and is located with the settlement of 
Sunningdale and within the designated Small Settlement Commercial Area. 

3.2 The site comprises 2 two storey red brick detached buildings known as Old and New 
Boundary House. The frontage building known as New Boundary House is an 
attractive red brick building with a dual aspect frontage with pitched roof and gable 
features with timber detailing and pebble dash. The building is set back off the London 
Road frontage with a range of trees and landscaping to the front. 

12



3.3 The building to the rear is known as Old Boundary House which, contrary to the name, 
is the more recent building and is a two storey building with the rear elevation 
comprising a 1.5 storey design with lower eaves. 

3.4 The two buildings are set back from the site boundaries with the associated car parking 
to the north, east and south with an area of open space to the south. 

3.5 The site’s surrounding context comprises both residential and commercial 
development with a public car park to the west. The London Road car park lies to the 
west with the associated car park access wrapping round the site to the north and east 
and adjoining the A30 London Road that shares the access off London Road. Beyond 
to the north lies open agricultural land associated with Broomhall Farm. 

3.6 Beyond to the east lies a mix of residential development that fronts London Road and 
comprises generally large detached dwellings and apartments blocks set well back 
from London Road itself thereby providing for a landscaped frontage that, in part, 
contributes to the established character of the area. 

3.7 To the south and south west across from the site lies The Ambassador care home that 
comprises a three storey red brick and render building designed to reflect several of 
the surrounding buildings that are of an ‘arts and craft’ design. Commercial 
development beyond includes an estate agents and furniture shop which are within 
attractive buildings. Beyond lies the London Road/Chobham Road junction around 
which are located a range of everyday shops and services including restaurants, fast 
food establishments, home DIY shop and clothes shops. Beyond to the south west 
approximately 500 metres to the south west lies Sunningdale train station and 
additional shops and other services. 

4. KEY CONSTRAINTS

4.1 The site lies within the built-up settlement of Sunningdale within the Small Settlement 
Commercial Area. 

4.2 The site is located within Flood Zone 1 and an area at low risk of surface water flooding. 
The site is not subject to any TPO’s nor are there any designated or non-designated 
listed buildings or any other heritage asset in the surrounding area.  

5. THE PROPOSAL 

5.1 The proposal is for erection of 28 residential units following the demolition of both Old 
and New Boundary House. The application is made in Outline form with the principle, 
means of access, layout and scale to be considered. Appearance and landscaping 
are to be reserved. 

6. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision 
21/01543/OUT Outline application for access, layout 

and scale only to be considered at 
this stage with all other matters 
reserved for the construction of 28 
apartments following demolition of 
the existing buildings 

Withdrawn 
01/10/2021 

13



7. DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

7.1 The main relevant policies are: 

Adopted Borough Local Plan  

Issue Policy

Spatial Strategy for the Borough SP1 

Climate Change SP2 

Sustainability and Placemaking QP1 

Green and Blue Infrastructure QP2 

Character and Design of New Development QP3 

Building Height and Tall Buildings QP3a 

River Thames Corridor QP4 

Housing Development Sites HO1 

Housing Mix and Type HO2 

Affordable Housing  HO3 

Economic Development ED1 

Protected Employment Sites ED2 

Other Sites and Loss of Employment 
Floorspaces

ED3 

Managing Flood Risk and Waterways NR1 

Nature Conservation and Biodiversity NR2 

Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows NR3 

Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area  NR4 

Sustainable Transport IF2 

Adopted Ascot, Sunninghill & Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan (2011 – 2026) 

Issue NP Policy
Retention of Employment Floorspace NP/E1 
Encouraging Micro and Small Business NP/E2
Respecting the Townscape NP/DG1
Density, Footprint, Separation, Scale & Bulk NP/DG2
Good Quality Design NP/DG3
Trees NP/EN2 
Mix of Housing Types NP/H2
Parking and Access NP/T1
Biodiversity NP/EN4

8. MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS  

14



National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2021) 

Section 2 – Achieving sustainable development 
Section 4- Decision–making  
Section 5 – Delivering a sufficient supply of homes 
Section 6 – Building a strong, competitive economy 
Section 9- Promoting Sustainable Transport  
Section 11 – Making effective use of land 
Section 12- Achieving well-designed places  
Section 14- Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change 
Section 15 – Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

Supplementary Planning Documents 

 RBWM Thames Basin Health’s SPA  
 Borough Wide Design Guide  

Other Local Strategies or Publications
 RBWM Townscape Assessment 
 RBWM Parking Strategy 

                       Affordable Housing Planning Guidance 
                       Interim Sustainability Position Statement  
                       Corporate Strategy 
                       Environment and Climate Strategy 

9. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties 

37 occupiers were notified directly of the application, a site notice was displayed and 
the application was advertised in the Local Press.  

17 responses have been received: all 17 of these responses are letters of objection to 
the development. These comments are summarised below: 

- Impact on highway safety 
- Question over social housing provision and potential lack of it 
- Unnecessary for further housing in this area 

Statutory consultees

Consultee Comment 
Where in the report 
this is considered

Local Flood 
Authority 

Raises no objection to the proposal subject to 
condition(s) relating to a surface water drainage 
scheme. 

Section 10 (viii) 

Highways Raises no objection to the proposal subject to 
condition(s) relating to: 

Parking layout 
Construction management plan 
Cycle provision 
Refuse bin and recycling strategy  

Section 10 (vii) 

15



Ecology NB: Ecology have been reconsulted since amended 
information was submitted and updated comments are 
awaited.  

The below is a summary of the comments received 18th

March 2022. 

Impacts on the SPA and SACs would need to be 
assessed through a site-specific shadow Habitats 
Regulations Assessments (HRA) and impacts on the 
SSSIs will need to be assessed through an Ecological 
Impact Assessment (EcIA). 

Further surveys are needed with regards to bats and 
roosting potential within the identified trees/hedgerows

The applicant needs to clearly demonstrate, using a 
quantifiable measure obtained from a suitable 
biodiversity calculator, prior to the application being 
determined, that the current proposals could and would 
deliver a net gain for biodiversity. 

Section 10 (ix)  

Housing Of the 28 flats, 8 flats are proposed as affordable 
housing which is equates to 28.6%. However, 9 flats 
would be 32% and be policy-compliant with BLP Policy 
HO3 in terms of numbers. The previous application 
reference 21/01543/OUT proposed 13 flats as 
affordable housing (46%). 

The proposed floorplans show the split of 8 affordable 
and 2 market flats in Block A, summarised as follows 
by bedroom (B) and person (P) (this does not include 
3 market “turret” flats at the right end with their own 
access core). 

A policy-compliant scheme in terms of numbers would 
be 9 flats which would leave a single flat as market 
tenure. It would be more practical for the two access 
cores to be solely for affordable housing and hence 
would be more attractive to a Registered Provider. 

Although the tenure split would be 50% rent/50% 
intermediate and not exactly as stated in BLP Policy 
HO3, this can justified by: 

An additional affordable flat resulting in a total of 10 
(36%); 

The same tenure from the same access core. This is 
not only more practical but also allows maintenance 
and management charges to be separated for the 
different tenures which is a requirement of Registered 
Providers. 

Section 10 (vi) 

16



All the floor areas exceed the minimum requirement for 
the size of flat stated in the Nationally Described Space 
Standards 2015: 

1B1P should be at least 39m2, 42m2 is shown. 
1B2P should be at least 50m2, 53m2 is shown. 
2B3P should be at least 61m2, 72m2 is shown. 

The mix of flats would provide a range of smaller 
accommodation for single households, couples and 
small families and would adequately address local 
housing needs. 

If no Registered Provider is engaged at this stage, the 
Housing Enabling Officer has contact details for 
various RPs who can be approached in due course 
when the affordable housing number, type and tenure 
have been confirmed in light of the above comments. 

The affordable homes should be secured by a Section 
106 agreement to reflect the agreed number, type, 
tenure and location. There should also be provisions to 
secure a Registered Provider and appropriate delivery 
mechanisms for constructing, completing and 
transferring the affordable homes. 

Others (e.g. Parish and Amenity Groups) 

Group Comment 
Where in the 
report this is 
considered

Sunningdale 
Parish 
Council 

This application follows a previous application (reference: 
21/01543/OUT) which was withdrawn. This current application 
is almost identical to application 21/01543 and Sunningdale 
Parish Council comments on this latest application remain 
therefore largely the same. 

However, in the intervening period the Borough has adopted its 
new Borough Local Plan 2013-2033 (BLP). The curtilage 
comprising Old Boundary House and New Boundary House sits 
adjacent to the Broomhall Car Park Site, which is a strategic site 
identified for redevelopment under the BLP, reference AL33, as 
shown. Development AL33 completely wraps around the site 
under consideration here. 

Details of the AL33 development are not yet known, there is a 
presumption that this development will go ahead during the plan 
period and will be a Mixed-Use scheme including approximately 
30 residential units, retail, employment and public car parking. 

This application for New Boundary house and Old Boundary 
house must therefore be considered not just against the 
character of the village and surrounding area as it is currently – 

Section 10 

17



but also against this significant pending AL33 development 
which will significantly increase the density of this part of 
Sunningdale on its own. 

Overdevelopment 
This development of an additional 28 apartments is windfall 
development which represents considerable over development 
in this area, especially when viewed against the intended 
development of AL33. 

The density is much greater than that of the surrounding area  
The current site is largely green space and has a feeling of 
openness  
The built mass of this development would be substantial 
compared to the building density that currently exists. 
This would be contrary to BLP/QP2 and BLP/QP3 

Comparison with The Ambassadors opposite is not considered 
to be valid as this is a retirement housing complex. There are 
no street scene elevations shown and no side elevations or rear 
elevations to view. Yet, the proposal is for a 10.5 metre high, 3 
storey high building on the front northeast boundary corner of 
the property. 

The building architecture is described as an arts and crafts 
interpretation as shown to the right. The Parish Council believe 
the scale, bulk, and size of the front elevation would be out of 
character with the street scene. 

Trees, woodlands and hedgerow 
hTe percentage of built form versus green space on the plot can 
be seen in the outline plan to the right. Green spaces are almost 
non-existent. The application states that minimal tree works are 
envisaged and that no tree works are recommended at the 
present time. This new application now shows more trees, along 
the boundary with the car park access road behind, which are 
being retained, but it is difficult to see how many, if any, of the 
existing trees could remain as their RPAs will be severely 
impacted by the development. 

There are existing laurel hedges and evergreen borders on the 
site which are shown to the right.  

The application does not appear to have addressed the loss of 
amenity resulting from the removal of hedgerows, and 
substantial green areas, which would take place as a result of 
the development of these blocks which in some cases sit close 
to the boundary. This would be contrary to BLP/NR3. 

Affordable housing 
The applicant’s statements about affordable housing states that 
‘a proportion of the dwellings will be affordable homes OR a 
financial contribution will be offered to provide off-site affordable 
housing secured through a Section 106 Legal Agreement in due 
course’. The Parish Council would certainly encourage the 

18



inclusion of a substantial number of affordable housing units 
within the scheme and would strongly oppose these being 
replaced by a financial contribution to provide off-site affordable 
housing. 

Traffic/Access 
The intersection of the busy A30 London Road and Chobham 
Road is directly opposite the proposed development. Traffic 
exiting Chobham road and turning right on to the London Road 
often has to negotiate a difficult junction as traffic is commonly 
turning right across their path from the London Road into 
Chobham Road.  

The intended development of Broomhall Car Park (AL33) 
includes ‘Enhance vehicular access into the site from London 
Road’. It is difficult to see how this can be achieved when the 
proposed development for Old and New Boundary houses also 
needs to address issues of access. Adding a further 
complication of negotiating traffic entering and exiting this 
proposed new development will only exacerbate the problem.  

Only 34 car parking spaces are being provided on a 1 space for 
1 apartment basis plus an additional 6 spaces. All traffic must 
enter and leave the site via the existing single carriageway 
vehicular access point. Manoeuvring and trying to park in the 
central square courtyard as well as sharing this confined space 
with delivery trucks and service vehicles does not appear to be 
a workable proposition.  

Also, there seems to be no provision for disabled parking, nor 
electric car charging facilities and therefore is not in line with 
BLP/NR5. 

Open space 
Policy BLP/IF4 states that residential development on non-
allocated sites of ten dwellings or more should normally provide 
new open space and play facilities. This may be the reason for 
the inclusion of a raised communal deck over eight car parking 
spaces in the parking area, but its design and purpose is unclear 
- and it’s visual impact to the development has not been shown.

SPAE Objects to the proposal. 

The application resubmitted is essentially the same as the 
previously withdrawn application, but with the main difference 
being reference to the Council not having a five-year housing 
land supply. 

Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan is not 
out of date and should be considered relevant.  

The layout as being contrived to squeeze so many units into 
such a small site. It clearly has been difficult to retain the 
existing trees on the boundaries and these appear to be being 
jeopardised. There can be expected to be sustained pressure 

19



on many of the mature trees on the site because of 
overhanging, lack of light and shading issues. In view of the 
extensive root protection areas, the proposed development will 
inevitably result in damage to, or loss of, mature trees. 

The scale of development (90dph) would introduce an 
intensification which would be out of character with the centre 
of Sunningdale. The permission for the Ambassador site 
(incidentally, less dense) was granted in June 2001 for 1- and 
2-bedroom retirement flats (00/79281). As such the application 
cannot be compared with the Ambassador. Also, it was in a 
planning era long before either the adoption of the 
Neighbourhood Plan or the NPPF. 

To retain and encourage employment, planning policy makes 
clear: Proposals for the redevelopment or change of use of an 
existing site where the current use provides jobs to a use where 
jobs will not be provided will only be permitted if the applicant 
demonstrates that all possible appropriate alternative job 
providing options have been considered and actively marketed 
on a realistic basis for a period of at least 12 months without any 
economically viable options resulting (NP/E1.1). We are not 
aware of any such marketing activity and so the proposal is 
contrary to NP/E1. In addition, the Neighbourhood Plan includes 
Sunningdale Broomhall Centre (NP/SS5) which has been 
identified for a mixed development reflecting the local character 
and quality of the area and enhancing the way it functions 
(NP/SS5.4). The applicant’s site is bounded on three sides by 
this site and on the remaining side by the A30 road. The two 
sites share access from the A30 which requires to be improved 
(NP/SS5.2). Further, there is insufficient unrestricted access to 
the site for deliveries and service vehicles due to the 
constrained circumstances of the site. This does not comply 
with NP/T1.1. 

10. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

10.1 The key issues for consideration are: 

i Principle of Development 
ii Loss of Employment 
iii Impact on Character and Appearance 
iv Residential Amenity 
v Trees 
vi Provision of Market and Affordable Housing 
vii Highway Safety and Parking 
viii Floods and Drainage 
ix Ecology and SANG 
x Other Material Considerations  

Principle of Development 

20



10.2 The application site is located outside of the Green Belt within the built-up settlement 
area of Sunningdale where Policy SP1 of the Local Plan states that the villages 
excluded from the Green Belt will continue in their roles as local centres as well as 
providing limited opportunity to accommodate new development.  

10.3 In this context, there is in principle support for the provision of housing on the site 
subject to compliance with other relevant development plan policies, including the loss 
of employment floorspace, and other material considerations. 

Loss of Employment  

10.4 The application site currently comprises two detached buildings that are both currently 
in use as offices. The two buildings provide for approximately 716square metres of 
office space which is currently being used by a range of businesses including IT 
companies, insurance brokers, a solicitors practice and accountants. 

10.5 Local Plan Policy ED1, ED2 and ED3 all focus around employment and retaining sites 
for economic use and employment use, allowing for growth within existing sites and 
the creation of new additional sites within the district. Local Plan Policy ED3 specifically 
requires that where a change of use from an economic use to another use is proposed, 
development proposals must provide credible and robust evidence of an appropriate 
period of marketing for economic use and that proposals would not cause 
unacceptable harm to the local economy. 

10.6 In addition, Policy NP/E1 of the Ascot, Sunninghill & Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan 
states as follows: 

“Proposals for the redevelopment or change of use of an existing site where 
the current use provides jobs to a use where jobs will not be provided will only 
be permitted if the applicant demonstrates that all possible appropriate 
alternative job providing options have been considered and actively marketed 
on a realistic basis for a period of at least 12 months without any economically 
viable options resulting. 

For the avoidance of doubt, the applicant shall be required to demonstrate that 
conversion for occupation by micro or small businesses is not an economically 
viable option.” 

10.7 Paragraph 8 of the NPPF states, inter alia, that in seeking to achieve sustainable 
development the planning system has three roles, the first of which is an economic 
role which aims to help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy by 
ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right place and at the 
right time to support growth, innovation and improved productivity. 

10.8 Paragraph 81 within Section 6 of the NPPF commands that significant weight should 
be placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity taking into account 
both local business needs and wider opportunities for development. While not 
specifically referring to the loss of such employment and business development it is 
nevertheless reasonable to conclude that significant weight must be given to the loss 
of such floorspace, particularly that which is currently in use and providing office space 
for a range of local businesses. 

10.9 The application site is, as confirmed by the applicant, currently in use as an office and 
as such it is evident that the buildings are currently suitable for such a use where the 
above extant and emerging development seek to protect such uses unless there is 

21



sufficient evidence to demonstrate that the current employment use is no longer viable. 
Such evidence comprises marketing information for at least 12 months and provided 
that such marketing has been undertaken at reasonable market rates. 

10.10 The applicant has failed to provide any marketing information at all to demonstrate that 
the current use is no longer viable. The potential impact of the loss of this existing 
office space is further exacerbated by the Eastern Berkshire FEMA Economic 
Development Needs Assessment (2016) (2016 EDNA). 

10.11 The 2016 EDNA refers to the Homes and Communities Agency Employment Density 
Guide that states every 12.5 square metres of office space will support 1 full time job. 
On this basis the 716 square metres of office space that would be lost would have the 
potential to support approximately 52 full time jobs. 

10.12 Furthermore, the two office buildings are currently in use by at least five separate 
commercial businesses. The on-going use demonstrates that the two buildings are 
indeed suitable for and attractive to local businesses further highlighting the 
importance in seeking to retain such space to contribute towards the Borough’s overall 
economy.  

10.13 The 2016 EDNA conforms that the Brough has a requirement for approximately 50,500 
square metres of additional office space. Such a need, in conjunction with the fact that 
several local businesses are indeed operating from the site further highlights the 
importance of such space to the local economy and the need to retain such space. 

10.14 The loss of active office space without any marketing or other such information at all 
is wholly unacceptable and would have a detrimental impact on the local and wider 
economy and as such is contrary to Local Plan Policy ED3, Neighbourhood Plan Policy 
NP/E1 and Section 6 of the NPPF. 

Impact on Character and Appearance 

10.15 Section 12 of the NPPF clearly states that the creation of high quality, beautiful and 
sustainable buildings is fundamental to what the planning and development process 
should achieve. Local Plan Policy QP3 is consistent with these overarching objectives 
of Section 12 of the NPPF and requires new development to be of a high quality design 
and have regard to a range of design based criteria. 

10.16 Policy QP3’s criteria sets out 16 criteria around design which all new development 
should follow/comply with. These include ensuring that new development should be 
compatible with the established street facade having regard to scale, building lines and 
the roofscape of a building and ensuring development includes protection of existing 
trees and comprehensive blue and green infrastructure being integrated into the 
proposal and high quality soft and hard landscaping.  

10.17 Neighbourhood Plan Policies NP/DG1 and sub-Policy NP/DG1.4 ensure new 
development responds positively to the local townscape. The RBWM Townscape 
Assessment Report should be used as a base to inform development proposals with 
1.4 stating “Development proposals in Townscape Assessment zones Victorian 
Villages must respect the form and character of the street and of the surrounding area.” 

10.18 The site is located within an area classed as Victorian Villages with the Townscape 
Assessment listing the Key Characteristics, inter alia, as rows of terraces and semi-

22



detached properties that are typically 2 and 2.5 stories in height, a unit brought about 
by a consistent materials pallet, detailed building frontages, variation in rooflines that 
creates a stimulating streetscape.  

10.19 Moreover, Policy NP/DG2 ensures new development is similar in density, footprint, 
separation, scale and bulk to neighbouring properties with NP.DG2.2 stating that 
development must respect building lines, front gardens, walls, railing and hedges. 

10.20 Furthermore, Policy NP/DG3.1 requires all new development to demonstrate good 
quality design with regard to the use of green hedging and/or trees in keeping with the 
existing streetscape.  

10.21 The application site comprises two detached buildings with a low brick wall and railings 
that defines the main London Road frontage together with well-established mature 
landscaping with the closest building, known as New Boundary House, being set back 
from London Road by approximately 12 metres. Such a set back has allowed the 
hedgerow, trees and other landscaping to flourish which dominates the site frontage 
that contributes to the overall character of London Road that, save for the more central 
areas that surrounds the London Road/Chobham Road junction, is made up of well 
established mature trees and other landscaping with buildings being set well back from 
London Road. 

10.22 While submitted in outline form with appearance being reserved the application has 
sought permission for layout and scale and as such there are numerous urban design 
aspects that can be considered at this stage.  

10.23 The scheme would comprise a roughly U shaped building that would comprise 2, 2.5 
and 3 storey elements with singe storey elements. The London Road frontage would 
entail a 2.5 storey buildings with a 3 storey ‘turret’ located to the north east corner of 
the site. The London Road frontage would be sited close up to the road frontage with 
a minimal set back of between approximately 2 metres and would also entail the 
removal of all the front boundary landscaping. This frontage section of the building has 
been referred to as Block A with the remainder referred to as Block B. The Site Plan 
(Drawing No. 21-01-A-100-P3) however demonstrates that there will be one building 
with what would appear to be a small singe storey element located adjacent to the 
entrance archway. Appearance however is to be considered at the Reserved matters 
stage.   

10.24 In addition to the London Road frontage the remaining sections of the building are also 
sited close up to the boundaries of the site with, at some points no set back from the 
site boundaries, to a minimal set back of only 2-3m. 

10.25 The U Shaped design of the building with the frontages being set so close to the site 
boundaries will result in the built form dominating the site frontages with negligible 
space left to implement a landscaping strategy to off-set the complete removal of the 
existing landscaping that forms an integral part of the sites character. 

10.26 Opposite the site is the Ambassador House care home that comprises a three storey 
building and as such there is no objection to the principle of such a 2.5/3 storey building 
at the application site. However, the proposal would result in a building with all of the 
built form located very close to the site boundaries without any room to implement a 
sufficient landscaping to replace the existing trees and hedgerow that would be 
removed.  

23



10.27 The applicant has referred to the Ambassador House development where they claim 
the built form covers 43.1% of the site compared to 38.5% of that proposed. 
Ambassador House however is sited in a more central part of the site that has allowed 
a landscaping scheme to be implemented that now forms an integral part of that site’s 
character that respects the wider character of London Road. 

10.28 Whilst this may be the case, good design is much more than a mathematical 
assessment and requires an assessment against urban design considerations such as 
the presence of landscaping, building lines, building heights and the overall scale and 
appearance of a building. 

10.29 The existing buildings are set back from the site boundaries and have more of a 
relationship with the residential properties north east. To the south west are several 
commercial buildings that are sited directly onto the public realm and are characteristic 
of more town centre locations which are 2 storey in scale thereby representing 
considerably less bulk that that proposed. The application site therefore represents a 
transition from the centre of Sunningdale to the lower density residential development 
along London Road. 

10.30 It is this transitional nature of the application site that would allow for some reduction 
in the set back of any new buildings. However, as required by Policies QP3 and NR3 
of the Local Plan and Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/DG3 any new development 
needs to retain and incorporate the existing trees and landscaping. The inability of the 
scheme to retain any soft landscaping or implement a sufficient landscaping scheme 
serves to demonstrate that the scheme represents a cramped and contrived form of 
development and as such represents a poor quality form of development. 

10.31 As outlined above the scheme proposes a 2.5 storey building along the London Road 
frontage with a 3 storey ‘turret’ similar to Ambassador House. There is no objection to 
a building of this scale. However, the complete removal of the existing trees and 
landscaping and the siting of the built form so close to the site boundaries would result 
in a very cramped appearance that would be harmful to the character and appearance 
of the area.  

10.32 Sunningdale Parish Council have raised concern over the allocated site (AL33) off the 
London Road car park. This application site would, save for the access, have no impact 
on the deliverability of the allocated site for its intended mixed use. 

Residential Amenity 

10.33 Paragraph 130(f) of the NPPF ensures planning creates places that are safe, inclusive 
and accessible which promote health and well-being with a high standard of amenity 
for existing and future residents. The need to ensure a high standard of amenity for 
both existing and future residents is set out in the Borough Wide Design Guide. 

10.34 Paragraph 8.1 of the Borough Wide Design Guide SPD states that residential amenity 
in the form of light, privacy, outlook and provision of outdoor amenity space is a 
detailed but important design matter that has a very strong influence on the quality of 
people’s living environments. Paragraph 8.2 states that new developments should 
provide future occupiers with high quality amenities and not undermine the amenities 
of occupiers of neighbouring properties, especially where these are residential 
properties.  

24



10.35 Table 8.1 of the Borough Wide Design Guide SPD sets out the minimum separation 
distances for, inter alia, front to front, rear to rear and front/back to flank relationships 
for both 2 storey and above. Table 8.1 and the separation distances are referred to 
below where necessary. 

Existing Residents 

10.36 To the west of the application site is the London Road public car park with commercial 
development including an estate agents to the south west and south of the site around 
the London Road/Chobham Road junction. Such commercial uses would not be 
impacted upon by the proposed development in terms of daylight and sunlight, 
overlooking or other amenity impacts including noise and disturbance. 

10.37 To the south east of the site opposite the site is the Ambassador House care home 
that would have a front to front relationship with the northern part of the proposed 
development. Both the application scheme  and Ambassador House are over two 
stories in height. In such cases Table 8.1 of the Borough Wide Design Guide SPD 
states such separation distance should be a minimum of 15 metres. 

10.38 Notwithstanding the oblique angle of view between Ambassador House and the flats 
proposed the separation distance between the two sets of units fronting London Road 
would be in excess of 20 metres. As such there would be no material impact on the 
occupants of Ambassador House as a result of the proposed development. 

10.39 To the north east of the site are new residential properties on the former Lime Tree 
Villa site. The north east elevation of the application scheme would have a front to flank 
relationship with the former Lime Tree Villa houses. The submitted Storey Heights Plan 
confirms that this section of the development would be 3 stories in height and as such 
Table 8.1 would require a minimum separation distance of 15 metres. 

10.40 The proposed north east elevation would be between approximately 9 and 12.5 metres 
from the side of the back garden of the Plot 1 of the former Lime Tree Villa dwelling. 
Furthermore, the north east elevation of the application proposal would result in a 
number of habitable room windows that would face the back garden area at both first 
and second floor level. Such an increase in the number and height of windows together 
with balconies has the potential to result in an adverse loss of privacy to the occupants 
of this dwelling even with the proposed retention of some of the existing trees within 
the red line site plan. It is the applicants intention to install privacy screens on some 
balconies whilst this would go some way to protecting existing occupiers it does not 
alleviate all concerns raised above. As such the proposal is contrary to the objectives 
of Policy NP/DG2 of the Neighbourhood Plan paragraph 130 of the NPPF and Policy 
QP3 of the Local Plan 

Future Occupants 

10.41 In addition to the above it is important to ensure new developments would provide 
future occupants with a high standards of amenity, both internally and externally. 

10.42 Before considering the outdoor space proposed it is necessary to consider whether 
the proposed flats would meet the Nationally Described Space Standards. Officers can 
confirm that each of the residential units proposed will meet or exceed the space 

25



standards set by MHCLG. On this basis future residents would have a good quality 
amenity with regard to internal space. 

10.43 In addition to internal space the Borough Wide Design Guide sets a requirement for 
flatted developments to have both private and communal space. 

10.44 With regard to the need for ground floor flats to have a private terrace, these should 
be, in terms of size, at least 3 metres in depth and as wide as the unit they serve. 
Whilst terraces/gardens have been provided for all ground floor flats not all of those 
terraces/gardens would be at least 3 metres in depth and as wide as the flat they would 
serve whilst two of the terraces would directly abut parking spaces further limiting the 
overall quality and usability of such spaces. None of the ground floor units on Block A 
would have a private terrace space. 

10.45 With regard to the first floor units, second floor units and third floor units of Block B 
these would only have access to a small balcony. The units at both first and second 
floor of Block A would also all have access to a balcony however similarly to those of 
Block B, these are all small in size. The Borough Wide Design Guide is clear that all 
flats should have some private space and as such the scheme fails to accord with 
paragraph 130(f) of the NPPF and Policy QP3 of the Local Plan. 

10.46 In addition to each flat being required to have private outdoor space Principal 8.6 of 
the Borough Wide Design Guide states that a minimum of 10 square metres of 
communal outdoor space per flat must be provided. 

10.47 In addition to the need for such a space, Principal 8.6 sets out that amenity space 
should be connected to the building, screened from public view, free of vehicles, 
actively overlooked and dominated by planting and allows for sustainable tree planting. 

10.48 The scheme proposes 28 residential flats and as such there should be a minimum of 
280square metres of outdoor communal space. The application proposes the U-
shaped building with car parking to the rear within a courtyard area. The only green 
space comprises negligible areas located between the outside edges of the buildings. 
The applicant has provided a site plan which highlights the extent of green space. 

10.49 It is evident from the image that the scheme would fail to provide any meaningful 
outdoor communal space and that the green space provided would be dominated by 
the London Road, London Road car park access and not screened from public view 
and irregularly shaped. As such the scheme is contrary to the aims of paragraph 130 
of the NPPF and Principal’s 8.5 and 8.6 of the Borough Wide Design Guide. 

Trees 

10.50 The Character and Appearance section above has referred to the contribution the 
existing trees and hedgerow make to the character and context of the surrounding 
area. 

10.51 The Borough Townscape Assessment highlights the importance of and desire to 
conserve distinctive trees and hedgerows. Such aims echo the objectives of Policies 
QP3 and NR3 of the Local Plan, Neighbourhood Plan Policies NP/DG1, NP/DG2 and 
NP/DG3. 

10.52 In addition to the policies referred to above the importance of trees is further highlighted 
by paragraph 131 of the NPPF which states “Trees make an important contribution 

26



to the character and quality of urban environments and that opportunities are 
taken to incorporate trees into developments. The importance of trees to the built 
environment is from both a character aspect as well as an ecological aspect.  

10.53 As a result of the proposal a total of 31 trees (28 of these are considered to be of 
moderate quality) would be removed. This would result in a significant reduction 
visually within the street scene and a significant reduction of arboricultural value on the 
site. In addition, the limited room for landscaping and planting would ensure trees 
would be in close proximity to flank walls and as such would not survive on site in the 
long term. Such issues would result in a significant impact on the character and 
appearance of the site and surrounds contrary to Policies NR3 and QP3 of the Local 
Plan and Policies NP/DG1, NP/DG2 and NP/DG3 of the neighbourhood Plan 

10.54 Without any justification as to why such mature trees cannot be successful retained 
and without the ability to implement a landscaping scheme to offset such wholesale 
removal of existing trees the scheme is, in arboriculture terms, unacceptable. The 
scheme is therefore contrary to Policy QP3 and NR3 of the Local Plan, Neighbourhood 
Plan Policies NP/DG1, NP/DG2 and NP/DG . 

Provision of Market and Affordable Housing 

10.55 The application site is located within the built up settlement area of Sunningdale and 
would provide a total of 28 market and affordable flats on a brownfield site. As set out 
above in Section 9(i) of this report the principle of such a proposal, in terms of housing 
provision, is entirely acceptable. Additional reference is made to the Borough’s 
Housing Land Supply below. 

10.56 Local Plan Policy HO2, Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/H2 seek to ensure that 
development provides for a mix of dwelling types. The application proposal would 
provide for the following mix of houses: 

House Size No. of Units
1 Bedroom 11 
2 Bedroom 5
3 Bedroom 12

10.57 The scheme would therefore provide for a mix of residential units that would provide 
suitable accommodation for both younger individuals and couples along with families 
and as such would accord with those relevant policies that seek to achieve a mix of 
residential units. 

10.58 With regard to the provision of affordable housing, Policy HO3 of the Local Plan 
ensures that all new residential development on sites of more than 1,000square metres 
or where a net increase of 10 or more dwellings is proposed there should be a provision 
of affordable housing and that such provision is made as part of the development itself. 

10.59 The proposal will secure 8 affordable units on site as follows: 

4x 1BF - social rent (left core, ground and first floor) 
1x 2BF - affordable rent (left core, second floor) 
2x 1BF, 1x 2BF - shared ownership (middle core, first and second floor) 

10.60 In addition to the on site provision of affordable units, the applicant has agreed to pay 
a commuted sum equivalent to 0.4 units which would be secured by way of S106 

27



Agreement. The Housing Officer has accepted these proposals and raises no 
objection.  

Highway Safety and Parking 

10.61 The Highways Authority have reviewed the application and have made the following 
comments: 

10.62 It is noted the site was the subject of a similar development proposals which was later 
withdrawn by the developer (21/01543/OUTLINE). 

10.63 The site benefits from an access onto the A30 London Road via an access road which 
also serves London Road Car Park. It is noted that no changes are proposed to the 
existing access arrangement. However, the development does propose introducing a 
pedestrian path from the mid-point of the site onto the public footway. 

Parking Provision 

10.64 Pursuant to the Borough’s Parking Strategy (2004), the development is considered to 
be within an accessible location. That said, the existing bus services whilst regular is 
not frequent to encourage the prospective occupants to adopt this sustainable mode 
of travel. Notwithstanding the above, the 34 car parking spaces provided complies with 
the Borough’s parking strategy.  

10.65 The developer is advised that 20% of the total car parking provision should be active 
electric vehicle charging points (EVC), with a similar ratio for passive EVC points.  
Furthermore, disabled parking should represent 5% of the overall parking provision (2 
spaces). 

Cycle Provision 

10.66 The development attracts a minimum demand for 28 enclosed, secure and accessible 
car parking spaces. The submitted layout plan shows two separate cycle parking 
facilities. Having examined the plan, it is recommended that the developer submits a 
dimensioned plan of both cycle storage facilities, and this should be secured by a 
planning condition. 

Refuse/Servicing Arrangement 

10.67 A refuse store is positioned close to the site’s gated entrance. The sites internal road 
network provides sufficient room to allow a panel van or similar delivery vehicle to 
enter, turn and leave in a forward manner. However, confirmed is required with regards 
to the arrangement for collecting the refuse and recycling bins. The Highway Authority 
will not support developments where the bins are left on the highway to migrate onto 
the access road or left on the public footway/amenity areas. This information can be 
obtained by way of planning condition. 

10.68 Traffic Generation 

In order to understand the impacts associated with the development, the transport 
consultant has interrogated the TRICS database and compared the predicted trip 
generated by both the existing and proposed uses. To summarise, the results suggest 
the residential development is predicted to attract an additional 6 and 7 vehicular trips 
during the AM and PM peak periods, respectively.   

28



10.69 In highway terms, this increase is not considered significant nor is it likely to lead to an 
adverse  impact on highway safety, having regard to paragraph 11 of the Framework. 

Summary 

10.70 In highway terms, officers are satisfied the development is unlikely to lead to an 
adverse impact on the surrounding highway network.  

Floods and Drainage 

10.71 The Lead local Flood Authority (LLFA) have been consulted and whilst initially further 
clarification and information was required, this has since been obtained. As a result, 
the LLFA raise no objection to the proposal subject to a condition relating to a surface 
water drainage scheme. The application is therefore considered to comply with Local 
Plan Policy NR1 and the NPPF. 

Ecology and SANG 

10.72 The Council’s Ecologist previously raised a number of issues/concerns an requested 
further information be submitted, this has been provided by the applicant. At the time 
of writing the committee report Officers have not yet received a further consultation 
response from the Ecologist, this is hoped to be provided to Committee Members by 
late papers. As it currently stands there is a holding objection from the Ecologist and 
therefore the proposal currently fails to comply with policy NR2 of the local Plan.   

10.73 As noted above, the site falls within the 400m – 5km Zone of Influence of the Thames 
basin Heaths SPA. In such areas the Council’s Thames Basin Heaths Special 
Protection Area SPD (Part 1) sets a two-fold approach to mitigating the potential 
impacts of development that, alone or in combination, could have a significant impact 
on the integrity of the SPA. 

10.74 The two-fold approach comprises the provision of Suitable Natural Alternative 
Greenspace (SANG) and financial contributions towards strategic access 
management and monitoring (SAMM). 

10.75 There is no capacity at the Allen’s Field SANG, one of the Council’s Strategic SNAG 
for a development of this size. The applicant was been advised to liaise with Bracknell 
Forest Council in order to secure the necessary SANG provision to mitigate against 
the potential impacts to the SPA. As of the time of his committee report the applicant 
has not yet informed the Council that alternative arrangements/provisions have been 
made.  

10.76 As no such SANG provision has been secured, and with the impacts associated with 
the proposal set out above, the proposal is contrary to the aims of Policy NRM6 of the 
South East Plan, Policy NR3 of the Local Plan and Section 15 of the NPPF. 

Other Considerations 

10.78 Policy QP3 ensures new developments are resilient to climate change and incorporate 
design and construction measures that minimise energy demand and water use, 
maximise energy efficiency and minimise waste. 

29



10.79 While very limited information has been provided on such aspects of the scheme these 
could, should Officer’s have considered the scheme largely acceptable in planning 
terms, have been agreed during the course of the application and secured by way of 
an appropriate condition(s). 

11. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

11.1 The development is CIL liable.  

12. PLANNING BALANCE  

12.1 This application seeks outline permission for the erection of 28 residential units with 
the principle, means of access, layout and scale to be considered. Appearance and 
landscaping are to be considered at the reserved matters stage. 

12.2 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Act (2004) states that “If regard is to be 
had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under 
the planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise” and as such the starting point for the 
determination of this application is the Borough Local Plan 2013 – 2033 and the Ascot, 
Sunninghill & Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan 2011 – 2026 (Made February 2014) 
and the NPPF (2021). 

12.3 The application proposes the demolition of the two buildings that are currently in use 
as offices by a number of local within the built up settlement of Sunningdale. As stated 
above, without any marketing information, or other such justification as to why the 
existing office space is no longer viable the scheme is contrary to the aims of Policy 
ED3 of the Local Plan, Neighbourhood Plan Policies NP/E1 and paragraph 81 of the 
NPPF. 

12.4 The scheme would entail the complete removal of all boundary trees and the erection 
of a 2, 2,5 and 3 storey U shaped building. While reference has been made to two 
blocks (Block A and Block B) that are divided by the access arch way the Site Plan 
appears to show that they would nevertheless be a single structure. The U shaped 
layout of the built form will be sited very close up to the site boundaries. The remaining, 
very limited space would need to be shared between landscaping and providing for 
private and communal space.  

12.5 Such issues combine to demonstrate the scheme would represent a cramped and 
contrived design. Officers have however no objection to the principle of a 2.5 or 3 
storey building however the siting of such a building so close to the boundaries would 
result in a cramped poorly designed form of development without any meaningful 
space to implement a landscaping scheme. e importance of design is set out through 
the Local Plan, the Neighbourhood Plan, and the NPPF and National Design Guide 
The scheme is therefore contrary to Policies QP3 of the Local Plan and Policies 
NP/DG2, NP/DG3 and NP/EN2 of the Neighbourhood Plan and Section 12 of the 
NPPF.  

12.6 Principle 8.1 of the Design Guide SPD stating that developments which would have 
significant impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties will be resisted. The 
proposal would result in some 8 windows on the first and second floors, together with 

30



balconies which would be between 9 and 12 metres from the back garden of properties 
on the former Lime Tree Villa property having a substantial increase in the amount of 
overlooking and loss of privacy when in their back gardens.  

12.7 Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP.DG3.2 ensures dwellings are provided with sufficient 
garden or amenity space with Principles 8.5 and 8.6 of the Borough Wide Design Guide 
SPD ensure all flatted developments have both private and communal outdoor amenity 
space. While the scheme would provide some of the units with a terrace or balcony 
these appear small compared to the Design Guide criteria. Moreover, no private 
communal space is provided. The applicant claims the outdoor green space is for such 
amenity space. However, this is extremely limited, poorly laid out and irregularly 
shaped and would be dominated by the car park and the London Road car park access 
nor would it be screened from public view. The proposal fails to accord with Policy 
DG3.2 and the Design Guide and paragraph 130(f) of the NPPF. 

12.8 Policy NRM6 of the South East Plan ensures harm is not caused to the Thames Basin 
Heath SPA through the provision of adequate measures which are set out in the 
Borough’s Thames Basin Heaths SPA SPD. The applicant has confirmed they are in 
discussion with Bracknell Forest regarding securing the necessary SANG provision. 
Without the necessary SANG provision in place the scheme is contrary to Policy NRM6 
and the Thames Basin Heaths SPD.  

12.9 The proposal would provide for 8 affordable units together with a commuted sum 
payment equivalent to 0.4 units so as to ensure that the proposal provides the full 30% 
affordable as required under Local Plan Policy HO3. Whilst the provision of affordable 
homes is a benefit of the scheme, this benefit is afforded limited weight given that the 
Council can currently demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply. This limited benefit of 
the scheme is not considered to be significant enough to outweigh the harms identified 
above.  

12.10  Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states inter alia that when considering the application there 
is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. The Council currently as an up 
to date adopted Local Plan having being adopted earlier this year (2022), paragraph 
12 of the NPPF states that the overarching presumption in favour of sustainable 
development does not change the statutory status of the development plan as the 
starting point for decision making, where an application conflicts with an up to date 
development plan including any neighbourhood plans) permission should not usually 
be granted. The applicant contends within their planning statement that the weight to 
be afforded to the Neighbourhood Plan should be greatly reduced as paragraph 14 of 
the NPPF is engaged. However, given the Council have an up to date Local Plan, 
paragraph 11d and therefore 14 are not engaged and do not apply.  

12.11 The Council currently benefits from a 5 year housing land supply and an up to date 
local plan. As such while there are benefits associated with the proposal in terms of 
Affordable Housing and additional housing stock, these are relatively limited in both 
quantity and weight, and therefore would not outweigh the identified harms such that 
planning permission should be forthcoming for this proposal. 

13 CONCLUSION 

13.1 The proposal therefore fails to accord with relevant development plan policies and 
national planning guidance. In light of this, planning permission should be refused. 

14. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

31



 Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout 

 Appendix B – plan and elevation drawings 

15.  REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED  

1 The application involves the loss of two office buildings that are currently used by local 
businesses. The buildings are evidently attractive to local businesses and their loss, 
without any marketing information or any other justification is unacceptable and would 
have a significant adverse impact on the local, and potentially wider economy. The 
proposal is therefore contrary to the objectives of Policy ED3 of the Local Plan, Policies 
NP/E1 and NP/E2 of the Ascot, Sunninghill & Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan, 
paragraph 81 of the NPPF. 

2 The proposed development, by virtue of its U-shaped layout that results in the built 
form being sited extremely close to or largely on the boundaries of the site, coupled 
with the loss of mature boundary trees and limited space to implement a meaningful 
replacement landscaping scheme, would result in a poorly designed and cramped form 
of development that would have an adverse impact on the character and appearance 
of the site and surrounding area. The proposed scheme is therefore contrary to Policies 
QP3 and NR3 of the Local Plan, Policies NP/DG2, NP/DG3 and NP/EN2 of the Ascot, 
Sunninghill & Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan, paragraphs 126, 130 and 132 of the 
NPPF. 

3 The proposed development, by virtue of its cramped poorly designed layout would fail 
to provide sufficient private and communal outdoor amenity space that would impact 
upon the amenities of future occupants contrary to the objectives of Policy NP/DG3 of 
the Ascot, Sunninghill & Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan, paragraph 130(f) of the 
NPPF and Principals 8.5 and 8.6 of the Borough Wide Design Guide. 

4 The proposal is likely to have a significant effect in combination with other plans and 
projects in the locality on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area [SPA] as 
designated under The Conservation (Natural Habitats, etc) Regulations, and which is 
also designated as a Site of Special Scientific Interest [SSSI]. This would arise through 
increased visitor and recreational pressure on Chobham Common, as a constituent 
part of the SPA, causing disturbance to three species of protected, ground-nesting 
birds that are present at the site. In the absence of an assessment to show no likely 
significant effect, including sufficient mitigation measures to overcome any such impact 
on the SPA, and in the absence of financial provision towards the Strategic Access 
Management and Monitoring (SAMM) project and the provision of Suitable Alternative 
Natural Greenspace (SANG) noted in the Council's Thames Basin Heaths Special 
Protection Area SPD or satisfactory alternative provision, the likely adverse impact on 
the integrity of this European nature conservation site has not been overcome. The 
proposal is thus in conflict with the guidance and advice in the National Planning Policy 
Framework and the RBWM Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area SPD and 
fails to comply with policy NR4 of the Borough Local Plan. 

32



22/00721/OUT - Old Boundary House And New Boundary House, London 

Road, Sunningdale 

Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout 

33



34



Appendix B – plan and elevation drawings 

Block A 

35



36



Block B 

37



38



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL 

5 October 2022 
Item:  2 

Application 
No.:

22/01945/FULL 

Location: 106 Wolf Lane Windsor SL4 4YZ 
Proposal: x1 rear outbuilding - retrospective.
Applicant: Mr Prakash 
Agent: Mr Paul Davey
Parish/Ward: Windsor Unparished/Clewer And Dedworth West 

If you have a question about this report, please contact:  Edward Vaudin on  or at 
edward.vaudin@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY 

1.1 This planning application seeks retrospective permission for an outbuilding within the 
rear garden area of 106 Wolf Lane, Windsor.  

1.2 Although, it is considered that the outbuilding results in some harm to the character of 
the area, significant weight is given to the fact that if the height of the outbuilding was 
lowered by 35cm, the outbuilding would be permitted development and would not 
require planning permission. The difference in the impact on the character of the area 
between what would be permitted development, and the scheme presented in this 
planning application is not considered to be significant.  

1.3 Planning applications have to be determined in accordance with the development 
plan, unless there are material considerations that indicate otherwise. The fall-back 
position of permitted development is a material consideration, as such the application 
is recommended for approval.  

It is recommended the Committee grants planning permission with the conditions listed 
in Section 13 of this report. 

2. REASON FOR COMMITTEE DETERMINATION

 The application was called in by Cllr Davey for reasons relating to character, impact on the 
street scene and drainage.

3. THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS 

3.1 The application site comprises of an end-of-terrace dwelling in a residential area of 
west Windsor. It is located at the end of a cul-de-sac of Wolf Lane and is adjacent to a 
footpath, which is adopted highway. The adjacent footpath slopes down from the south 
on Wolf Lane to the north connecting to Poolmans Road, whilst the land within the rear 
garden of 106 Wolf Lane is predominantly level.    

4. KEY CONSTRAINTS

4.1 The application site is located within a blanket Tree Preservation Order area. There 
are no trees within the rear garden of 106 Wolf Lane or anywhere else on site. There 
are trees subject to a TPO to the north-west of the site, on the opposite side of the 
footpath.  

39

Agenda Item 5



5. THE PROPOSAL 

5.1 Permission is sought for an outbuilding to the rear of 106 Wolf Lane, which has already 
been constructed. 

5.2 The outbuilding consists of a 2.85m tall timber structure with a flat roof with a slight 
overhang on the front elevation. The outbuilding measures 6.755m by 2.31m in width 
and depth respectively, spanning the width of the rear garden area.  

5.3 The siting of the outbuilding is to the rear of 106 Wolf Lane, it is adjacent to the rear 
boundary of the site with an approximate gap of 25cm as shown on the proposed floor 
plans. An approximate separation distance of 3.5m would be present between the 
outbuilding and the dwelling at the application site.  

5.4 The materials of the outbuilding consist of a timber structure; it has plastic cladding to 
the side and rear elevations; and a felt roof. The front elevation includes three grey 
glazed frames and a door of the same material from west to east of the front elevation. 

6. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

6.1 There is no relevant planning history.  

7 DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

7.1 The main relevant policies are: 

Adopted Borough Local Plan  

Issue Policy

Character and Design of New Development QP3 

Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows NR3 

Adopted Windsor Neighbourhood Plan 

Issue Policy 

Design DES.01 

Amenity RES.01 

8. MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS  

National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2021) 

Section 2 - Achieving sustainable development 
Section 4 - Decision–making   
Section 12 - Achieving well-designed places  
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment  

Supplementary Planning Documents 

 Borough Wide Design Guide  

40



9. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties 

9.1 3 occupiers were notified directly of the application. However, no comments were 
received from occupiers of neighbouring properties. 

Group Comment 
Where in the report this is 
considered

Winsor 
Neighbourho
od Delivery 
Group  

Reduces private outdoor amenity space 
such that it is below the minimums set out 
in Principle 8.4 of the Borough Wide 
Design Guide SPD 2020. Policy RES01 of 
the WNP also stresses importance of 
adequate outdoor amenity space. In event 
of approval, a condition should be attached 
restricting use to purposes ancillary to the 
host dwelling. 

These policies are considered to be 
more relevant to new residential 
development as opposed to 
householder development.  

It is not considered necessary to 
impose a condition to restrict the 
use of the outbuilding to be 
ancillary, as if it was used as an 
independent dwelling it would 
require planning permission. 

10. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

10.1 The key issues for consideration are: 

i Impact on the character of the area  
ii Impact on neighbouring amenity  
iii Trees 
iv Drainage 

Impact on the character of the host dwelling and surrounding area 

10.2 The appearance of a development is a material planning consideration, and the design 
of a proposal should not adversely impact on the character and appearance of the 
wider area. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), 2021 is a material 
planning consideration in the determination of planning decisions. Section 12 of the 
NPPF concentrates on guiding the overall scale, density, massing, height, landscape, 
layout, materials, and access of new buildings in relation to neighbouring buildings and 
the local area more generally. Policy QP3 of the Adopted Borough Local Plan (BLP) 
and the Borough Wide Design Guide Supplementary Policy Document (SPD) are in 
line with the NPPF.  

10.3 As summarised in Section 5 of this report, the outbuilding is 6.755m by 2.310m in width 
and depth and has a height of 2.850m with a flat roof. 

10.4 106 Wolf Lane is a two-storey dwelling and the outbuilding subject of this application 
appears subservient in its relationship with the dwelling. The dwelling is characterised 
by flat roof front and rear extensions, such that a flat roof outbuilding of this scale would 
not detract from the character of the dwelling. Whilst the treated timber appearance is 
not characteristic of the dwelling, this is not considered to be detrimental to the 
character of the dwelling, or the character of the area and is appropriate for an 
outbuilding of this nature.  

41



10.5 The footpath that runs adjacent to the application site links Wolf Lane to Poolmans 
Road, Wyatt Road and beyond, as well as a neighbouring play area. This footpath 
slopes down gradually towards the north, whereas the ground level of 106 Wolf Lane 
remains fairly consistent across the site. The difference in ground levels between the 
application site, and the adjacent footpath, in combination with the siting and scale of 
the outbuilding makes it appear prominent when viewed from this footpath; this causes 
some harm to the character of the area. Given the topography of the footpath, this 
harm is at is greatest when viewed from the north.  

10.6 As the outbuilding is sited in the rear of 106 Wolf Lane, it is not immediately visible 
from the street of Wolf Lane itself.  

10.7 As set out above, although it is considered that some harm would arise to the character 
of the area, consideration should be given to the permitted development fallback 
position. An outbuilding of an identical footprint could be erected under permitted 
development rights, albeit with a lower height of 2.5m instead of the existing 2.85m.  
The difference on the impact of the character of the area between a scheme that would 
be permitted development, and the scheme presented in this application is not 
considered to be significant. The permitted development fall-back position is a material 
consideration that weighs in favour of the application.  

Impact on neighbour amenity 

10.8 The outbuilding is sited adjacent to the boundary with 104 Wolf Lane. It is sited 
approximately 6.7m away from the rear elevation of the dwelling at 104 Wolf Lane. 
Whilst the outbuilding is visible from this neighbouring property, it is not considered to 
be unduly overbearing, or result in an unacceptable loss of light to the dwelling nor its 
rear garden area.   

10.9 The outbuilding includes several glass panels that face the host dwelling of 106 Wolf 
Lane. Whilst these are in proximity to 104 Wolf Lane, they predominantly screened by 
the boundary fence as well as the rear extension of 106 Wolf Lane, such that overall 
they would not result in any significant loss of privacy to the neighbouring dwelling. 

Trees 

10.10 The site is within a blanket Tree Preservation Order area, however, there are no trees 
within the rear garden area of number 106. Trees subject to a TPO, are situated to the 
north-west of the application site and separated by a footpath, as such the scheme is 
not considered to cause harm to protected trees.    

Drainage 

10.11 This application is for a householder development. The scheme is not of a scale, or 
within an area that has issues with drainage which would necessitate a sustainable 
drainage scheme to be submitted. Drainage is not a matter that is relevant to the 
planning consideration of this scheme.  

11. CONCLUSION 

11.1 The outbuilding results in some harm to the character of the area. This adds weight 
against the application. 

11.2 The permitted development rights afforded to the site are such that an outbuilding of 
identical footprint could be erected without planning permission, albeit with a reduced 

42



height of 2.5m. This adds significant weight in favour of the application and is a material 
consideration in the assessment of this application. 

11.3 On balance, the fallback position through the use of permitted development rights is 
considered to outweigh the harm attributed to this proposal. As such, it is 
recommended that the Committee grant planning permission subject to the conditions 
listed in Section 13 of this report. 

12. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

 Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout 

 Appendix B – plan and elevation drawings 

13. CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED  

1 The materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development shall be in 
accordance with those specified in the application unless any different materials are 
first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details.  
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Borough 
Local Plan QP3. 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans listed below. 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved particulars and plans. 

43



Appendix A- Site location and planning layout  

44



45



Appendix B- plan and elevation drawings  

46



Appeal Decision Report 
 

26 August 2022 - 23 September 2022 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Windsor and Ascot 
 
 
Appeal Ref.: 21/60013/ENF Enforcement 

Ref.: 
16/50301/ENF PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/C/21/

3267890 
Appellant: Liquid Leisure Limited, c/o Agent: Miss Amy Cater Tozers LLP North Door Broadwalk 

House Southernhay West Exeter EX1 1UA 
Decision Type: Issue Notice Officer Recommendation:  
Description: Appeal against the Enforcement Notice:  (1) Change of use of the land to extend carpark 

area. (2) Use of public address system in breach of planning condition and (3) Use of 
clubhouse beyond 22:00hrs.  Alleged change of use of the site. 

Location: Liquid Leisure Waterski And Wakeboard Ltd Horton Road Datchet Slough SL3 9HY  
Appeal Decision: Withdrawn Decision Date: 22 September 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
 
 

Planning Appeals Received 
 

27 August 2022 - 23 September 2022 
 
Windsor and Ascot 
 
The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning 
Inspectorate.  Should you wish to make additional/new comments in connection with an appeal you 
can do so on the Planning Inspectorate website at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ please use 
the PIns reference number.  If you do not have access to the Internet please write to the relevant 
address, shown below. 
 
Enforcement appeals:  The Planning Inspectorate, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple 

Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN  
 
Other appeals:  The Planning Inspectorate Temple Quay House, 2 The Square Bristol BS1 6PN  
 
Ward:  
Parish: Wraysbury Parish 
Appeal Ref.: 22/60065/REF Planning Ref.: 22/00852/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/22/

3300670 
Date Received: 13 September 2022 Comments Due: N/A 
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Fast Track Appeal 
Description: Part single/part two storey front/side/rear extension following part demolition of single storey 

side element and garage. 
Location: 27 The Drive Wraysbury Staines TW19 5ES  
Appellant: Ms Leigh Vansanten c/o Agent: Mrs Fiona Jones Cameron Jones Planning Ltd 3 Elizabeth 

Gardens Ascot SL5 9BJ  
 
 
Ward: 

 

Parish: Windsor Unparished 
Appeal Ref.: 22/60067/REF Planning Ref.: 22/00090/TLDTT PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/22/

3299985 
Date Received: 14 September 2022 Comments Due: 19 October 2022 
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation 
Description: Application for determination as to whether prior approval is required for proposed 20m 'slim 

line' phase 8 monopole c/w wraparound cabinet at base, 3no. additional ancillary equipment 
cabinets and associated ancillary works. 

Location: Land At Junction of Wolf Lane And Tinkers Lane Windsor   
Appellant: Mr Gee c/o Agent: Mr James Reilly Dot Surveying C/o 14 Inverleith Place Edinburgh EH3 

5PZ 
 
 
 

48

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/

	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	DPIs (relating to the Member or their partner) include:

	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 22/00721/OUT - OLD BOUNDARY HOUSE AND NEW BOUNDARY HOUSE LONDON ROAD SUNNINGDALE ASCOT
	5 22/01945/FULL - 106 WOLF LANE WINDSOR SL4 4YZ
	6 Planning Appeals Received and Planning Decision Report

